OF SUNSHINE VILLAS HOMECMNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. A corporation not for profit under the laws of the State of Florid

ARTICLE I IDENTITY

These are the By-Laws of SUNSHINE VILLAS HOMECMNERS SOCIATION, INC., hereafter called Association in these By-Laws, a corporation not for profit under the laws of the State of Florida, the Articles Of Incorporation of which were filed in the office of the Secretary of State on the _______ day of, 19 ___ the

Association has been organized for the purpose of owning and operating certain lands located in Charlotte County, Florida, which lands are to be used in common by all of the members of Sunshine Villas Homeowners Association, Inc., which members shall all be property owners at Sunshine villas. Such operation by the Association shall include the management of Sunshine villas in keeping with the terms

And conditions as set forth in the

And conditions as set forth in the "Declaration of Restrictions Of. Sunshine villas", and the enforcement of such restrictions, using the Homeowner and Renters Guide

A. The office of the Association shall be at Building "U" at Sunshine Villas Port Charlotte. Florida 33952

B. The fiscal year of the Association shall be the calendar year.

C. <u>The seal</u> of the Association shall bear the name of the corporation, the word, "Florida", the words, "corporation not for profit", and the year of incorporation, an impression of which is as follows:

ARTICLE II DEFINITIONS

- Section 1. The following words when used in these By-Laws or any supplemental By-Laws (unless the context shall otherwise require) shall have the following meaning:
 - A. The "Association" shall mean Sunshine villas Homeowners Association, Inc., its successors and
- B. The "Development" shall mean the real property described in Exhibit "A", know as "Parcels 1 & Parcels 2" together with all buildings and improvements thereon.
- C. The "Common Area" shall mean those areas of land owned by the Association and shown in Exhibit "B". Said areas are intended to be devoted to the common use and enjoyment of Members of the Association (hereinafter defined), and are not dedicated for use by the general public.

 D. "Dwelling unit" or "Unit" shall mean any dwelling unit located in the Development, but shall not include the
 - Common Area.
- E. "Owner" shall mean the record owner, whether one or more persons or entities, of the fee simple title to any Dwelling Unit, but shall not mean or refer to any mortgagee or subsequent holder of a mortgage, unless and until such mortgagee or holder has acquired title pursuant to foreclosure or any proceeding in lieu of foreclosure.
 - F. "Member" shall mean and refer to all those persons who are members of the Association as provided in Article III, Section 1 hereof.

ARTICLE III

MEMBERSHIP AND VOTING RIGHTS IN THE ASSOCIATION & Rules of conduct

- Section 1. Membership Every person who has an interest in any Dwelling unit, which is subjected by these By-Laws to assessment by the Association, shall be a Member
 - Section 2. Voting Rights The Association shall have 106 unit owners as voting members
- A: Members shall be all Owners. A Member shall be entitled to one vote for each Dwelling Unit in which he holds the interest required for membership by Section 1 of this Article III. When more than one person holds such interest or interests in any Dwelling Unit, and the vote for such Dwelling unit shall be exercised as they among themselves determine, but in no event shall more than one vote be cast with respect to any such Dwelling unit.
- B: <u>HOMEOWNERS & RENTER GUIDE</u> Complied and adopted from the Articles of Restrictions by the Board of Directors of Sunshine Villas to be the official guide of conduct at Sunshine villas.

ARTICLE IV

ASSESSMENTS

The obligations with respect to Assessments are governed by Article V of the Declaration, as the same may be amended from time to time.

ARTICLE V MEETINGS

Section 1. <u>Annual Meeting</u> The annual meeting of Members for the election of directors, the presentation of the annual financial report of the Association and for the transaction of such other business as the Board of Directors may determine, shall be held at the principal office of the Association In January Time and Date to be fixed by the Board of Directors.

Section 2. <u>Special Meetings</u>. Special meetings of Members for any purpose may be called at any time by(1) the President of the Association, or (2) any three (3) directors of the Association, and shall be called by the Secretary of the Association, forthwith upon receipt of the written request of members of the Association entitled to case one-third of all votes of the entire membership or who are entitled to cast one-third of all votes of the Class A Membership. Special meetings shall be held solely for. such purpose or purposes as are set forth in the notice or waiver of notice of the meeting.

Section 3. Special Meetings for the Election of Directors.

(a) If for a period of one (1) month after the latest date fixed herein for the annual meeting of Members, there is a failure to elect a sufficient number of directors to conduct the business of the Association, the Board of Directors shall call a special meeting for the election of directors. If such special meeting is not called by the Board within two (2) weeks after the expiration of such period or if it is called but there is a failure to elect such directors for a period of two months after the expiration of such period, Members entitled to cast one hundred (100) votes or ten (10%) percent of the total number of votes entitled to be cast in an election of directors, whichever is less, may, in writing, demand the call of a special meeting for the election of directors specifying the date and month thereof, which shall not be less than two (2) nor more than three (3) months from the date of such written demand. The Secretary of the Association upon receiving the written demand shall promptly give notice of such meeting or, if he fails to do so within five (5) business days thereafter, any member signing such demand may give such notice. The meeting shall be held at the principal office of the Association or at such other place as may be fixed in the notice of meeting.

(b) At any such special meeting called on the demand of Members, notwithstanding the provisions of these By-Laws, Members attending, in person or by proxy and entitled to vote in an election of directors shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of electing directors, but not for the transaction of any other business

Section 4. Notice and Waiver of Notice of Annual and Special Meetings. Notice of the time, place and purpose or purposes of every meeting of the Members shall be served (except as provided in Section 3, Article V of these By-Laws), either personally or by mail, not less than ten (10) nor more than fifty (50) days before the meeting, upon each person who appears upon the books of the Association as a Member and if mailed, such notice shall be directed to the Member at his address as it appears on the books of the Association unless he shall have filed with the Secretary of the Association a written request that notices intended for him be mailed to some other address, in which case it shall be mailed to the address designated in such request. The notice provided for herein is not indispensable and any meeting of Members shall be deemed validly called for all purposes if all Members are represented thereat in person or by proxy, or if a quorum is present and waivers of notice of the time, place and purpose of such meeting shall be duly executed in writing either before or after said meeting by those Members not so represented or not given such notice. The

of any Member at a meeting in person or by proxy, without protesting prior to the conclusion of the meeting the lackof notice of such meeting, shall constitute a waiver of notice by him.

Section 5. Quorum. At any meeting of Members the presence in person or by proxy of fifty (50) percent of Members entitled to vote thereat shall be necessary to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, except as otherwise expressly provided by law, by the Certificate of Incorporation of the Association, the Declaration, or elsewhere in these By-Laws. In the absence of a quorum, or when a quorum is present, a meeting may be adjourned from time to time by vote of a majority of Members entitled to vote present in person or by proxy, without notice other than by announcement at the meeting and without further notice to any absent Member. At any adjourned meeting at which a quorum shall be present, any business may be transacted which might be transacted at the meeting as originally scheduled.

Section 6. Voting. If a quorum is present the affirmative vote of a majority of Members represented at the meeting shall be the act of all Members, unless the act of a greater number is expressly required by law or by the Certificate of Incorporation of the Association, the Declaration, or elsewhere in these By-Laws. Any Member may vote either in person or by proxy appointed by an instrument executed in writing by such member or his duly authorized attorney-infact and delivered to the secretary of the meeting. No proxy shall be valid after the expiration of eleven months from the date of its execution unless the Member executing it shall have specified therein its duration. Every proxy shall be revocable at the pleasure of the person executing it, or his personal representative or assigns. upon direction of the presiding officer or upon demand of a Member, the vote upon any business before a meeting shall be by ballot, but otherwise any such vote need not be by ballot.

Section 7. Action Without a Meeting. Whenever Members are required or permitted to take any action by vote, such action may be taken without a meeting on written consent, setting forth the action so taken, signed by all Members entitled to vote thereon.

Section 8. Procedure. The presiding officer shall determine the order of business and all other matters of procedure at every meeting of Members.

Section 9. Inspectors of Election. The "board of Directors in advance of any meeting of Members may appoint one or more inspectors of election to act at the meeting or any adjournment thereof. If inspectors are not so appointed, the person presiding at a Members' meeting may, and on the request of any Member entitled to vote thereat shall, appoint one or more inspectors. In case any person appointed as inspector fails to appear or act, the vacancy may be filled by the Board in advance of the meeting or at the meeting by the person presiding thereat. Each inspector, before entering upon the discharge of his duties, shall take and sign an oath faithfully to execute the duties of inspector at such meeting with strict impartiality and according to the best of his ability, and the oath so taken shall be signed by the inspector before the person presiding at the meeting and shall be filed with the Secretary of the Association. No director, or candidate for director at a meeting, one of the purposes of which is to elect directors, shall act as inspector thereat.

ARTICLE VI

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Management of the Affairs of the Association. The management of the affairs of the Association shall be vested in a Board of Directors which may exercise all such powers of the Association and do all such lawful acts and things as are not by statute or by the certificate of Incorporation of the Association, or by the Declaration, or by these By-Laws directed or required to be exercised or done by the members.

Section 2. <u>Election of Directors</u>. The Board of Directors shall consist of not less than three (3) nor more than nine (9) directors, the number of persons constituting the whole Board of Directors to be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors. Directors shall be at least twenty-one years of age. Except as otherwise provided by law or in these By-Laws, the directors shall be elected at each annual meeting of members by a plurality of votes cast.

Section 3. <u>Vacancies</u>. Vacancies in the Board of Directors resulting from death, resignation or removal may be filled without notice to any Members by a vote of a majority of the remaining directors present at the meeting at which such election is held, even though a quorum is not present, which election may be held at any regular meeting of the Board of Directors or any special meeting thereof called for such purpose. A director elected to fill a newly created directorship shall serve in office during the unexpired portion of the term of his predecessor and until his successor is elected and qualified.

Section 4. Nomination of Directors. Not later than four (4) weeks prior to the date set for each annual meeting of Members, the president of the Association shall appoint a committee of Members. To nominate candidates for election as directors at the annual meeting. The recommendations of the nominating committee, together with a brief description of each candidate, shall be transmitted to the membership at the same time the notice of annual meeting of Members is distributed. Any Member at the annual meeting may make additional nominations from the floor.

Section 5. Meetings. Meetings of the Board of Directors, regular or special, shall be held in the State of Florida. The first meeting of the board of Directors following the annual meeting of Members shall be held not later than one

after the annual meeting of Members. Thereafter, regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held not less than once every month, except that meetings need not be held in July, August and September. Meetings may be held upon such notice, or without notice, and at such time and place, as shall be determined by the Board. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President, at such time and place as he shall determine, on five (5) days' notice to each director, either personally or by mail or by telegram; special meetings shall be called by the President or Secretary in like manner and on like notice

on the written request of three (3) directors. Notice of a meeting need not be given to any director who submits a signed waiver of notice, whether before or after the meeting, or who attends the meeting without protesting, prior thereto or at its commencement, the lack of notice. Neither the business to be transacted at,

nor the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors need be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of such meeting, except where otherwise required by law or Directors need be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of such meeting, except where otherwise required by law or by these By-Laws. A majority of the entire Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business except as otherwise expressly provided by law or by the Certificate of Incorporation of the Association, or by the Declaration or elsewhere in these By-Laws. The act of a majority of the directors present at any meeting at which a quorum is present shall be act of the Board of Directors, unless the act of a greater number is required by law or by the certificate of Incorporation of the Association, or by the Declaration or elsewhere in these By-Laws. If a quorum shall not be present at any meeting of directors, the directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present. At all meetings of the Board of

Directors, each director shall be entitled to one vote.

Section 6. Resignation and Removal. Any director may resign at any time by written notice delivered or sent by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, to the president or Secretary of the Association. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein, and unless specifically requested acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Any director may be removed from office with or without cause by Members of the Association at a meeting duly called for that purpose or with cause by the Board.

Section 7. Compensation. No salary or other compensation for services shall be paid to any director of the Association for services rendered as such director, but this shall not preclude any director from performing any other service for the Association and receiving compensation therefore.

Section 8. Executive Committee. The Board of Directors may, by resolution adopted by a majority of the entire Board, appoint from among its members an Executive Committee consisting of three (3) or more persons, which shall have and may exercise during the intervals between the meetings of the Board all powers vested in the Board, with the exceptions of those forbidden by law. The Board may at any time change the members of and fill vacancies in the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall keep regular minutes of its proceedings and shall report it to the Board of Directors when required. The Executive Committee may make rules for the conduct of its business and may appoint any sub-committees and assistants if considers necessary. A majority of the members of the Executive Committee shall constitute a guorum for the transaction of business. Committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

Section 9. Other Committees. From time to time the Board of Directors may appoint, from among the directors, Members, and other persons, other committees for any purpose or purposes with such powers as are conferred by the resolution of appointment and as are permitted by law. The President of the Association shall be an exofficio member of

all committees so appointed.

Section 10. Annual Report. The Board of Directors shall present at the annual meeting of Members a report of the financial and other affairs of the Association during the preceding year. The Board of Directors shall provide all Members, at the expense of the Association and within four (4) months of the end of each year, a copy of an annual audited financial statement of the Association prepared by an independent certified public accountant.

ARTICLE VII OFFICERS

Section 1. <u>Election</u>. The Board of Directors, at its first meeting after the annual meeting of Members, shall elect from their number a president and Vice President, and shall elect a Secretary and Treasurer, each officer to hold office until the meeting of the Board of Directors following the next annual meeting of Members and until their successors are elected and qualified. The Board may from time to time appoint such other officers, as it considers desirable to hold office at the pleasure of the Board. Any two of such offices, except those of President and Secretary, may be held by the same person.

Section 2. <u>Assistants</u>. The Board of Directors may at any time or from time to time appoint one or more Assistant Secretaries or more Assistant Treasurers to hold office at the pleasure of the Board. Such assistants, if any, in order of their seniority or in any other order determined by the Board of Directors shall, in the absence or disability of the Secretary or Treasurer, as the case may be, perform the duties and exercise the powers of the Secretary or Treasurer, as

the case may be, and shall perform such other duties as the Board of Directors or the Secretary or Treasurer, as the case may be, shall prescribe.

Section 3. Qualifications; Removal and Vacancies. Officers need not be Members of the Association. Any officer elected or appointed by the Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions of Section 1 and 2 of this Article VII may be removed by the Board of Directors at any time, with or without cause. Vacancies occurring in any office may be filled

by the Board of Directors at any time.
section 4. <u>Duties of President and Vice President</u>. The President shall be the chief executive and operating officer of the Association and shall preside at all meetings of the Members and of the Board of Directors. The President or the Vice President may sign the name of the Association on all certificates and contracts and other instruments which are authorized from time to time by the Board of Directors. The president, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, shall have general management of the affairs of the Association and perform all the duties incidental

to the office. If the President is absent from the State of Florida or is unable to act, the Vice President shall have the

powers and perform the duties of the President.

Section 5. <u>Duties of Treasurer</u>. Subject to the control of the Board of Directors, the Treasurer shall have the care and custody of all funds and securities of the Association, and all books and records relating thereto and shall deposit such funds in the name of the Association is such bank or trust companies as the Board of Directors may determine, and he shall perform all other duties incidental to

his office. If so required by the Board of Directors, he shall, before receiving any such funds, furnish to the Association a

with a surety company as surety, in such form and amount as the
Board of Directors from time to time shall determine. The premium upon such bond shall be paid by the Association.
Section 6. <u>Duties of Secretary</u>. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors and
of the meetings of the Members. He shall attend to the giving and serving of all notices of the Association, shall be
empowered to affix the corporate seal to all written instruments authorized by the Board of Directors or these By-Laws.
He shall also perform all other duties incidental to his office. He shall cause to be kept a record book containing the
names, alphabetically arranged, and addresses, of all Members

and the date they became such.

section 7. Compensation. No salary or other compensation for services shall be paid to any officer of the

Association for services rendered as such officer, but this shall not preclude an officer of the Association from performing

any other service for the Association and receiving compensation therefore.

ARTICLE VIII FINANCIAL MATTERS

Section 1. <u>Depositories</u>. The Board of Directors shall select such depositories as it considers proper for the funds of the Association. All checks and drafts against such deposited funds shall be signed and countersigned by persons specified by the Board.

Section 2. Contracts. The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, in addition to those specified in these By-Laws, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Association, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. Unless so authorized by the Board of Directors, no officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Association by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or render it liable for any purpose or to any

Section 3. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Association shall be determined by the Board of Directors of the

Association.

ARTICLE IX INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

Section 1. Right to Indemnification. Any person made a party to any action, suit or proceeding by or in the right of the Association to procure a judgment in its-favor by reason of the fact that he, his testator or intestate, 1s or was a director or officer of the Association, shall be indemnified by this Association, to the extent permitted and in the manner provided by law, against the reasonable expenses, including attorneys' fees, actually and necessarily incurred by him in connection with the defense of such action, suit or proceeding, or in connection with an appeal therein, except in relation to matters as to which such director or officer is adjudged to have breached his duty to the Association under Section 717 of the Not-for-Profit corporation Law of the State of Florida, but such indemnification shall in no case include:

(1) Amounts paid in settling or otherwise disposing of a threatened action, suit or proceeding, or a pending

action, suit or proceeding, with or without court approval, or

(2) Expenses incurred in defending a threatened action, suit or proceeding; or a pending action, suit or proceeding. which is settled or otherwise disposed of without court approval.

Proceeding. which is settled or otherwise disposed of without court approval.

Any person, made, or threatened to be made, a party to an action, suitor proceeding other than one by or in the right of the Association to procure a judgment in its favor, whether civil or criminal, including an action, suit or proceeding by or in the right of any other corporation of any type or kind, domestic or foreign, which any director or office of the Association served in any capacity at the request of the Association, by reason of the fact that he, his testator or intestate, was a director or officer of the Association, or served such other corporation in any capacity, shall be indemnified by this Association against judgments, fines, amounts paid in settlement and reasonable expenses, including attorney's fees actually and necessarily incurred as a result of such action, suit or proceeding, or any appeal therein, if such director or officer acted, in good faith, for a purpose which he reasonably believed to be in the best interests of the Association and, in criminal actions or proceedings, in addition, had no reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful. The termination of any such civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding by judgment, settlement, conviction or upon a plea of non contender, or its equivalent, shall not in itself create a presumption that any such director or officer did not act in good faith, for a purpose which he reasonably believed to be in the best interest of the Association, or that he had reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful.

Section 2. Other Rights; Payment. Any such right of indemnification as set forth in Section 1 of Article IX of these Bylaws shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which any such director or officer may be lawfully entitled either (a) apart from the provisions of Section 722 and 723 of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law of the State of Florida or in any other lawful manner.

Corporation Law of the State of Florida or in any other lawful manner.

ARTICLE X DISSOLUTION

In the event the Association is dissolved in accordance with the provisions of the Association's certificate of Incorporation, the assets, both real and personal, of the Association shall be distributed equally among the Members, one equal share per Dwelling unit. When more than one person holds an interest in the Dwelling Unit, these persons shall determine among themselves how their one share interest shall be distributed.

ARTICLE XI CONSTRUCTION

In the case of any conflict between the Certificate of Incorporation of the Association and these By-Laws, the Certificate of Incorporation of the Association shall control; and in the case of any conflict between the Declaration and these By-Laws, the Declaration shall control.

ARTICLE XII AMENDMENTS

These By-Laws may be amended or repealed in conformity with the Certificate of Incorporation of the Association and the Declaration by the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the directors present at any meeting of the Board of Directors or by the affirmative vote of a majority of the membership entitled to vote for The election of directors, provided, however, that no such amendment or repeal adopted by the Board of Directors shall become effective. Until thirty (3Q) days after notice thereof shall have been transmitted to the members of the Association. The notice of any meeting of members and the Board of Directors at which such action shall be considered shall contain a notice of the proposed amendment, or repeal. Any by-law adopted by the Board of Directors may be amended or repealed by the Members, and unless otherwise provided by the certificate of Incorporation of the Association, The Declaration or these By-Laws, any by-law adopted by the Members, may be amended or repealed by the Board.